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1. Name of Property

historic name Mount Pleasant Historic District
other names/site number N/A
2. Location

street & number __Main, S. Church, Eagle, Walnut, & College N/A O not for publication

ity or town Mount Pleasant N/A O vicinity

Pennsylvania PA Westmoreland 129 . 15666
state code county code zip code

3. State/Federal Agency Certification

As the designated authority under the National Historic Preservation Act, as amended, | hereby cerity that this B nomination
a request for determination of eligibility meets the documentation standards for registering properties in the National Register of
Historic Places and meets the procedural and professional requirements set forth in 36 CFR Pan 60. In my opinion, the property
& meets [J does not meet the National Reglster criterla. | recommend that this property be considered significant

{J nationatly statewide (X locally. ([J See continuation sheet for additional comments.)

Brent Glass, Ex. Dir. 6/19/98
Signature of cerlitying officialfTitle Date

PA Historical and Museum Commission
State of Federal agency and bureau

;;

In my opinion, the property (1 meets [J does not meet the National Register criteria. (D See continuation sheet for additionat
comments.)

Signature of certitying official/Title Date

State or Federal agency and bureau

4. National Park Service Certification
! hereby centify that the property is: Signature of the Keeper Date of Action

[ entered in the National Register.
1] see continuation shest.
[J determined eligible for the
National Register
{J see continuation sheet.
("} getermined nat eligible for the
National Register. .
(7 removed trom the National
Register.

O other, {explain:)




Mt. Pleasant Historic District
Name of Property

Westmoreland County, PA
County and State

5. Classification

Ownership of Property Category of Property
{Check as many boxes as apply) {Check oniy one box)
XX¥XA private O building(s)
xX3 public-local skt district
x5 public-State site
(I pubtic-Federal O structure
(0 object

Name of reiated muitiple property listing
(Enter “N/A" if property is not part of a muitiple property listing.)

N/A

Number of Resources within Property
(Do not include previously listed resources in the count.)

Contributing Noncontributing
268 56 buildings
1 0 sites
0 0 structures
1 0 objects
270 56 Total

Number of contributing resources previously listed
in the National Register

2

6. Function or Use

Historic Functions
(Enter categories from instructions)

Domestic/single dwelling

Domestic/multiple dwelling

_Commerce/trade/business

Religion/religious structure

Education/school

Recreation & culture/monument

Current Functions
{Enter categories from instructions)

Domestic/single dwelling
Domestic/multiple dwelling
Commerce/trade/business
Religion/religious structure

Education/school
Recreation & culture/monument

Defense/armory Vacant/not in use
Landscape/park Landscape/park
7. Description
Architectural Classification Materials
(Enter categories from instructions) (Enter categories from instructions)
other: no style foundation stone
Italianate walls brick
_Queen Anne wood
Colonial Revival roof asphalt
other slate

Narrative Description

(Describe the historic and current condition of the property on one or more continuation sheets.)



Mt.

Pleasant Historic ‘trict

Name of Property

West,eland County,

County and State

PA

8. Statement of Significance

Applicable National Register Criteria

(Mark *

‘X" in one or more boxes for the criteria qualifying the property

for National Register listing.)

XX A

XX C

(1D

Property is associated with events that have made
a significant contribution to the broad patterns of
our history.

Propenrty is associated with the lives of persons
significant in our past.

Property embodies the distinctive characteristics
of a type, period, or method of construction or
represents the work of a master, or possesses
high artistic values, or represents a significant and
distinguishable entity whose components lack
individual distinction.

Property has yielded, or is likely to yield,
information important in prehistory or history.

Criteria Considerations

{Mark *

‘x'" in all the boxes that apply.)

Property is:

.

(7B
{.ic
2o
(JE
oF

IJG

owned by a religious institution or used for
religious purposes.

removed from its original location.

a birthplace or grave.

a cemetery.

a reconstructed building, object, or structure.
a commemorative property.

less than 50 years of age or achieved significance
within the past 50 years.

Narrative Statement of Significance

(Explain the significance of the property on one or more continuation sheets.)

‘Areas of Significance

(Enter categories from instructions)
Commerce

Architecture

Period of Significance
c. 1812-1948

Significant Dates
N/A .

Significant Person
(Complete it Criterion B is marked above)

N/A

Cultural Affiliation

N/A

Architect/Builder
Bowers, Robert

Cooper,'Andrew, P;

Harmon, John, R.
see continuation sheet

9. Major Bibliographical References

Bibilography
(Cite the books, articles, and other sources us

Previous documentation on file (NPS):
Cl pretiminary determination of individual listing (36

CFR 67) has been requested

(O previously listed in the National Register
] previousiy determined eligible by the National

Register

[”] designated a National Historic Landmark
{_] recorded by Historic American Buildings Survey

#

{J recorded by Historic American Engineering

Boecrard #

ed in preparing this form on one or more continuation sheets.)

Primary location of additional data:

X State Historic Preservation Office
(1 Other State agency
O Federal agency
O Local government
O University
00 Other
Name of repository:
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Statement of Significance

Architect/Builder
Jones and Walker
Simon, Louis



Mt. Pleasant Historic District Wes!moreland County, PA
Name of Property County and State

10._Geographical Data

approximately 65 acres

Acreage of Property

UTM References
(Place additional UTM references on a continuation sheet.)

117 (612314,0,9 (42 14,5154,9 a7 |62 314, 2] 4414, 96,8 ¢
Zone Easting Northing Zone Easting Northing
21,7 (612, 39,0, 9 [441]4,5]34,9 al 7] l62,4]190 0] | 44]4, 46,6 C

(3 see continuation sheet

Verbal Boundary Description
(Describe the boundaries of the property on a continuation sheet.)

Boundary Justification
(Explain why the boundaries were selected on a continuation sheet.)

11. Form Prepared By

Clinton Piper

namettitle

organization Terry A. Necciai, Registered Architecic‘,ate March 1998

street & numper _RR_#4, Box 892 telephone _724.537.2728
city or town Latrobe state __ T2 zip code 15630

Additional Documentation
Submit the foilowing items with the completed form:

Continuation Sheets
Maps

A USGS map (7.5 or 15 minute series) in&icating the property's location.

A Sketch map for historic districts and properties having large acreage or numerous resources.
Photographs

Representative black and white photographs of the property.

Additional items
{Check with the SHPO or FPO for any additional items)

Property Owner
(Compiete this item at the request of SHPO or FPO.)

name

street & number telephone

city or town state zip code

Paperwork Reduction Act Statement: This information is being collected for applications to the National Register of Historic Places to nominate
properties for listing or determine eligibifity for listing, to list properties, and to amend existing listings. Response to this request is required to obtain
a benefit in accordance with the National Historic Preservation Act, as amended (16 U.S.C. 470 et seq.).

Estimated Burden Statement: Public reporting burden for this form is estimated to average 18.1 hours per response including time for reviewing
instructions, gathering and maintaining data, and completing and reviewing the form. Direct comments regarding this burden estimate or any aspect
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The Mount Pleasant Historic District in Westmoreland County, Pennsylvania is approximately 40
miles southeast of Pittsburgh, ten miles south of the county seat at Greensburg and five miles north
of Scottdale. The town lies on a rolling plain at the base of Chestnut Ridge which is the western
most ridge of the Allegheny Mountains. The district boundaries encompass Main Street (Route
31) from Quarry Street to the Baltimore & Ohio railroad tracks, College Avenue, South Church
Street, and Eagle Street. Within the boundaries are three hundred and twenty-six resources
including approximately two hundred residential buildings, one hundred and one commercial
buildings, nine religious buildings, fourteen miscellaneous buildings, one site, and one object. The
district contains two National Register listed buildings, the Samuel N. Warden House, at 200
South Church Street, and the Mount Pleasant Armory at Eagle Street and Spring Streets (not
counted in resource totals ). At the intersection of Main and Diamond Streets is a contributing
object, a doughboy monument. (Photo #1) A large green space, Frick Park, is a contributing site
between South Church and Eagle Streets. The buildings of the district are vernacular Georgian,
Italianate, Queen Anne and Colonial Revival styles dating from the early nineteenth century
through the early twentieth century. Fifty-six of the three hundred and twenty-six resources are
non-contributing. They are interspersed throughout the district, having little effect on the integrity
of the district as a whole. Outbuildings present in the district are generally small and not included
in the resource inventory. Scattered parking lots are also excluded from the resource inventory.

Mount Pleasant Historic District *‘includes = a one block deep Main Street with commercial,
civic, religious and residential buildings. Most of the commercial buildings exist in the block of
Main Street between Church Street to the west and Diamond Street to the east. At the intersection
of Main and Diamond Streets is a small square in which the buildings are set further back from
Main Street. At the center of the square is a doughboy monument. The small square is a minor
uncounted landscape feature not included in the resource inventory. Eagle Street, Church Street,
and College Avenue extend perpendicularly from Main Street to the south, constituting the main
residential portion of the district. South Church Street has the largest residential lots and generally
the largest, most architecturally distinctive houses of the district. Other streets, especially College
Avenue and portions of Eagle Street, have more tightly-spaced houses on smaller lots and shorter
set backs from the street. The district also has a green space, Frick Park between South Church
Street and Eagle Streets.
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Multiple-story commercial buildings of a vernacular character represent Mount Pleasant’s early
development as a local commercial center. Most of the commercial buildings are red brick with
first floor businesses, three or more openings across the facade, a gable roof, and corbeled eaves.
Two early commercial examples are the circa 1860 Overholt General Store at 751-753 Main
Street (Resource #220) and the circa 1870 harness shop at 790 Main Street (Resource #289). The
2 Y2 story, painted-brick, Overholt Store is a row building with a gabled roof and original brick
corbeling at the eaves of the east elevation. (Photo #11) It currently functions as an apartment
house. The 2 Y% story painted-brick harness shop has four openings across the second floor
facade. It was modified circa 1920 with new windows and a hipped dormer at the roof.

Further evidence of Mount Pleasant’s 1880s commercial development is a warehouse, two extant
hotels, and a former bank. All four buildings are brick with flat roofs concealed behind parapets
walls. The circa 1880 brick warehouse (Resource #305) was erected on a stone foundation at the
corner of Church and Smithfield Streets, Details of the building include brick pilasters, double
hung sash windows, and stepped parapet walls. The East End Hotel at 19 East Main Street
(Resource #40) is a three-story brick building erected circa 1885. It had Colonial and Classical
Revival embellishments added in the early twentieth century, including cornices between the first
and second floors and at the roof line. The other hotel in the district is located at 512-514 Main
Street (Resource #325). Built as the Grand Central Hotel circa 1895, it is a three-story building
with a rusticated stone first floor facade. The upper levels of the facade are divided into three
sections by means of brick pilasters and capped with a decorative cornice that conceals the flat
roof. The building retains integrity and currently functions as a restaurant and home to the Sons of
Italy Club. One commercial Queen Anne style building is located at 207 Main Street (Resource
#50). This circa 1890, three story building has five openings on the facade, decorative window
hoods, a deep comice, and a semicircular three story bay window. The first floor storefront which
functioned historically as a bank is intact.

Yellow and red brick commercial buildings with brick corbeling were typical in Mount Pleasant at
the-turn-of the-century. The buildings at 18 and 20 South Church Street (Resources #211 &

#210) are circa 1900, flat-roofed brick buildings with two openings on the facade. (Photo #19)
Each building has a yellow brick veneer, sandstone lintels, and a first floor storefront. Number 20
South Church Street has a decorative cornice above the storefront and segmentally arched window
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heads at the second floor. Number 18 South Church Street is an antique shop while number 20
houses apartments. Both buildings have good integrity. Similar in detailing to the previously-
mentioned building at 207 Main Street, is 755-757 Main Street (Resource #221). Built circa
1900, the three story, red brick building has a sloping roof. (Photo #11) On the second and third
floors, above the first floor storefront, are five tall openings with sandstone lintels and sills. The
roof line has brick corbeling and metal work at the parapet. An arched entrance on the comer of
the first floor and an arched porch on the second floor distinguish the two story circa 1905 red
brick Rimbauch Building at 509 Main Street (Resource #79) from other buildings in the district.
The original first floor storefront remains intact, and the building’s name is visible above the
simple sandstone cornice. The three story circa 1905 Gerecter Furniture Building at 609-611
Main Street (Resource #87) has a yellow brick veneer on the facade, a first floor storefront, two
second floor window openings, and four window openings on the third and fourth floors. All the
facade openings have keystones. As with the majority of the commercial buildings in the district, it
has corbeling at the roof line.

The 1905 Citizens Savings and Trust Company and First National Bank (Resource #304) at the
corner of Main and Church Streets is the most architecturally decorative commercial building in
the district. The three story building 1s of red brick construction with beige brick veneer on the
Main and Church Street elevations. Large pilasters with simple Doric capitals accent the Classical
Revival style exterior. An entablature extends around the building between the first and second
floors. At the roof line is a second entablature with egg-and-dart molding while a brick parapet
conceals the flat roof. The arched window openings have been covered but their keystoned
surrounds are intact.

In addition to a variety of commercial buildings, the district has an industrial building, a civic
building and a theater. The circa 1843 Shupe Steam Grist Mill (Resource #37) is a multiple bay,
four story, gable roofed vernacular building located at the eastern edge of the district. (Photo #8)
Some late nineteenth century additions have been made to the side of the mill. It continues to
operate with original steam machinery intact. The 1910 City Hall (Resource #310) at Smithfield
and Mullin Alley is a large square, flat-roofed building of ivory brick highlighted with sandstone
lintels and sills. Classical detailing includes a cornice and parapet walls. The building’s exterior
was painted when it became a print shop. In 1937 the one story brick, Art Deco style Penn
Theater (Resource #35) was designed by Pittsburgh architect Robert Bowers at 210 Main Street.’
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The facade has a large marquee with a semicircular glass block window tower above. 1t has been
converted into a wood working shop.

Mount Pleasant has a large number of brick churches with elements common to the Gothic and
Romanesque styles including round and pointed arch openings, brick corbeling at the eaves, brick
pilasters, buttressing, and bell towers. Reunion Presbyterian Church of 1873 (Resource #225) at
the corner of Main and Eagle Streets, is the most intact of the 1870s churches in the district, and it
is the only church to retain a tall, wooden spire. The other churches had their spires removed due
to deterioration or lightning strikes. (Photo #14) Exterior detailing of the church includes brick
corbeling, wood brackets at the eaves, and tall arched stained-glass windows accented with
sandstone sills and lintels. It has excellent integrity.

The two oldest churches in the district are Wesley United Methodist Church, (Resource # 301) at
720 West Main Street and the First Baptist Church (Resource #214) across the street. (Photo #9)
Wesley United Methodist is an 1856 red brick building whose facade was rebuilt in a
Richardsonian Romanesque inspired motif circa 1890. Details original to the building are the
gabled roof, corner bell tower, and round arch windows. First Baptist Church, built in 1869, has a
central bell tower, brick pilasters, and pointed arch stained-glass windows with sandstone
keystones. The present building was rebuilt in 1894 after a fire but the exterior architecture is still
true to its original 1869 construction.

Transfiguration Roman Catholic Church (Resource #12) at Smithfield and Hitchman Streets was
built in 1889. It has a unique central tower with a bell-shaped metal roof and two smaller flanking
towers with similarly shaped roofs. (Photo #5) Typical of churches in the district, the building is
brick with brick corbeling, buttressing, and arched windows. Local architects designed two
churches built after 1900. Trinity United Methodist Church at Main and College Avenue
(Resource #156) was designed by John R. Harman of Uniontown. It features a castellated comer
clock tower, recessed arcaded entrance, and a castellated roof line.? Visitation Catholic Church
(Resource #198) on Walnut Street was designed by the firm of Jones and Walker in 1915.% The
elaborate facade has arcaded bell towers and a large rose window. All the elevations have
extensive yellow and ivory brick corbeling. (Photo #22)
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Three Georgian vernacular style houses and a spring house predate Mount Pleasant’s
establishment as the Westmoreland County’s first borough in 1828. The three circa 1812 brick
houses and spring house are located on East Main Street. The 2 2 story L. Shupe House with
three openings across the facade at 201 Main Street (Resource #48) has a gabled roof, one end
chimney, intact two-over-two double hung windows, and a circa 1900 front porch. It still
functions as a residence. The Hitchman House at 355 Main Street (Resource #65) and the Rupert
Building at 642-644 Main Street, (Resource #313) are both 2 %; story buildings with gable roofs,
three bays across their facades and paired end chimneys. (Photo #3) The Hitchman House retains
two-over-two, double hung sash windows. Both buildings were built as houses but are currently
used for commercial purposes. They retain integrity. The Hitchman House retains its one story
brick spring house, (Resource #66) an indication of the rural origins of the district. The spring
house, with additions to the rear, has subsequently been converted to a private residence.
Together, these resources, built close to the street, convey a sense of Mount Pleasant’s early
nineteenth century roots.

The district has several rectangular brick and frame vernacular houses from the 1860s and 1870s
with three to five openings across their facades, gabled roofs, and chimneys. One example is the

2 V2 story Clark/Stauffer House (Resource #215) at 729 West Main Street built circa 1860 (Photo
#10). A brick house, it has five openings across the facade with distinctive segmental window
heads, a rear ell, and two centered chimneys at the gabled roof. Historically, it had a porch with
decorative brackets. However, subsequent widening of Main Street required its removal. Neatby
is the circa 1867 Dr. J. McConaughy House (Resource #223) at 761 Main Street. (Photo #12)

The 2 % story, painted-brick house has five openings across its facade, an intact front door with a
transom and sidelights, windows with sandstone lintels and sills, a gabled roof with parapeted gable
end walls, and paired end chimneys. A subsequent porch has been added to the facade. Two
additional vernacular style examples are the circa 1870 Samuel Warden House (Resource #175) at
207 Church Street and the Hubbs House (Resource #141) at 304 College Avenue. The Warden
House (not to be confused with the National Register listed Samuel Warden House at 200 South
Church Street) is a 2 ¥z story, vernacular, frame house with five openings across the facade, intact
wood siding, pedimented window hoods, slate roof, and brick end chimneys. The otherwise
simple porch has Doric columns. The Hubbs House is a similar 2 V% story, vernacular style
example with three openings across the facade, intact wood siding, brick end chimneys and porch
with original Ionic columns.
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Decorative Italianate style houses such as the circa 1875 John L. Shields House at 725 Walnut
(Resource #194) are also part of the district. The Shields House is a 2 Y% story, L-shaped, brick
house with paired wood brackets at the roof line, small horizontal windows at the eaves, and
original two-over-two facade windows with segmental heads. (Photo #21) The house currently
functions as a shop and residence. Italianate style houses are also located at 436 and 434 Main
Street (Resources #6 & #8). Both of these circa 1880 frame houses are two stories with flat roofs,
parapets, decorative cornices, and carved wood brackets. They retain original covelap siding,
some original windows, and subsequent porches. (Photo #2) The house at 434 Main Strect was
the home of D.P. Lowe, a prominent business and civic leader.* The congregation of the Reunion
Presbyterian Church erected a 2 % story, Italianate style brick parsonage at 15 Eagle Street in
1880.° 1t has five openings, a gabled roof, end chimneys, and wood brackets at the eaves. On the
first floor are original triple hung windows with elaborately carved hoods. The porch has original
columns with brackets at the porch. Overall, the house has good integrity.

Late nineteenth century vernacular Queen Anne style houses constitute a large portion of the
district. Most examples are 2 2 stories with hipped or gabled roofs and corbeled brick chimneys.
Generally these houses are two to three bays wide with porches across the facades and irregularly-
shaped footprints. Many are concentrated on Eagle Street, Coliege Avenue, and East Main Street.
(Photo #15) Some of the houses, especially along the southern end of Eagle Street, appear to be
company-built, with two openings across the facade. (Photo # 24) Their precise origin, however,
has not been determined. Other more claborately-detailed Queen Anne houses include the A M.
Ruff House at 804 Main Street (Resource #286) and the Dr. F.L. Marsh House at 802 Main

Street (Resource #287).° Both houses are 2 ¥; stories high with asymmetrical footprints and
wraparound porches.

Local business owners, bankers and coal operators built the most architecturally sophisticated
houses in the district. The Daniel Shupe House (Resource #36) next to the Shupe Mill at 36 Main
Street (Photo #7) is a 2 ¥z story, circa 1890, frame Queen Anne house. It has a hipped roof of
slate, distinctive decorative gable ends, and a large wraparound porch. The National Register
listed Samuel N. Warden House (Resource #40) at 200 South Church Street was built in 1886 by
a local coal operator and banker. The Second Empire style brick house has many intact, high style
details including tall windows with decorative hoods, brackets at the eaves, and a side carriage
entrance. Warden’s first house, (Resource #175) already mentioned, is across the street. The
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circa 1907 Mullin/Harmon House on College Avenue (Resource #126) was built by Mount
Pleasant banker Charles E. Mullin and designed by architect Andrew P. Cooper in Colonial
Revival style. "(Photo #18) It is a 2 ¥ story brick house with ten openings, a two-story portico of
Tonic columns on the facade, a full entablature around the eaves, and three dormers at the roof.
After a 1970s fire and partial collapse of the roof, the house was rehabilitated and converted to a
nursing home. It has good integrity.

In addition to the high concentration of buildings in the district, the late nineteenth century City
Beautiful Movement prompted Henry Clay Frick to donate a section of land between Eagle and
Church Streets (Resource #236) to the borough for use as a park in 1903. The large flat green
space has playing fields, recreation equipment, and a playground. A portion of Frick Park was
used to erect the 1906 National Register listed Mount Pleasant Armory (Resource #237). Itisa
large, red brick building built on a stone foundation. Although much of this original detailing has
been removed, the building does retain a recessed pointed arch entrance. The building is currently
threatened with demolition. In 1924, like many other towns in Pennsylvania, and across the
country, Mount Pleasant erected a doughboy monument in the small square at the intersection of
Main and Diamond Streets to commemorate soldiers who fought in World War I and other wars.
(Photo #1)

Local architects designed one of the district’s three schools and the Post Office. Ramsay High
School by Russell G. Howard of DuBois, Pennsylvania is a 1930 Spanish Revival style brick
building on Eagle Street.® (Resource # 254) Large wings flank the main block creating a courtyard
on the Eagle Street elevation. (Photo #23) Many original materials such as the tile roof and
decorative brickwork of various colors survive on the building’s exterior. At the comer of Church
and Main Streets is the one-story, red brick, circa 1936 Post Office by architect Louis A. Simon
(Resource #311).° This Colonial Revival style building has symmetrically-placed window and
door openings, a parapeted flat roof, brick quoins, and sandstone belt courses. It currently
functions as a floral shop.

Fifty-six of the 328 buildings in the district, about one sixth, are non-contributing since they were
either built outside of the period of significance, or have been altered to the degree that they no
longer reflect the district’s period of significance. The impact of these scattered, non-contributing
buildings in the district is minimal since they are of a similar scale to the surrounding buildings.
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Of the district’s fifty-six non-contributing buildings, thirty-nine are post 1948 buildings. The other
seventeen were constructed in the period of significance but have had extensive changes. The
Mount Pleasant Historic District conveys a strong sense of the mid to late nineteenth and early
twentieth century commercial history and traces the development of a variety of architectural
styles. The district illustrates the continued economic stability of Mount Pleasant as an
architecturally distinctive business and commercial center to this part of southern Westmoreland
County.
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The Mount Pleasant Historic District is significant under criterion "A" in the area of commerce as
a locally important center for surrounding agricultural areas, company-built “patch” towns, various
industrial complexes, and the railroad. Mount Pleasant was laid out along the historic Glades Road
on the first expanse of workable land west of mountainous Chestnut Ridge. In 1821 the Somerset
and Mount Pleasant Turnpike followed the Glades Road alignment establishing Mount Pleasant as
a place of trade, commerce, and residence. By the 1870s Mount Pleasant’s central location

proved advantageous to further commercial expansion with construction of industrial complexes to
extract coal, the development of glass factories, and the construction of company-built housing in
the areas outside of the borough. Mount Pleasant is also significant under criterion "C" in the area
of architecture for the variety of styles beginning with the district’s circa 1812 Georgian style
buildings and continuing through the late nineteenth century styles of Italianate, Queen Anne, and
Colonial Revival until 1948 when the town was largely defined commercially and architecturally.

Mount Pleasant’s Development
According to early deeds and land records, Englishman Joseph Marshall had claim to the original
land upon which Mount Pleasant eventually grew.'® With Marshall’s death, the land went to his
sons, Joseph II and Nathaniel. The Marshall brothers applied for a patent, or clear title, to the 212
3/4 acres of land called “Partnership” in 1784. Alexander McCready planned the lots of Mount
Pleasant on a portion of the Partnership tract he purchased from Nathaniel Marshall in August of
1797. Soon after this, thirty-four log houses were built, many served as taverns for travelers along
the road. Beginning in 1805, a regular stage coach operated from Chambersburg through Mount
Pleasant to Pittsburgh.'' In circa 1812, brick buildings were erected along Main Street in town,
four of which survive (Resources #8, #65, #66, & #313).2 An early nineteenth century traveler
described Mount Pleasant as a town where most of the business occurred on a long, narrow street
with houses and buildings built close to the road, a quality it still retains. "

Mount Pleasant developed at the intersection of two Indian Paths." Construction of the Glades
Road in 1772 followed the Glades Path from Bedford to Washington while General Braddock’s
Road from Cumberland, Maryland to Pittsburgh traced Nemacolin’s Path.”” In Westmoreland
County the Glades Road was the southernmost of three major transportation and trade corridors. It
branched off the Forbes Road four miles west of Bedford in Bedford County and traversed gladed
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areas to Somerset in Somerset County and to Laurelville at the western base of Chestnut Ridge in
Westmoreland County. The road continued further west to the rolling agricultural landscape
around Mount Pleasant to West Newton in Westmoreland County and Monongahela in
Washington County. The Glades Road extended beyond Monongahela eventually joining the
National Road to Ohio at Washington, PA.

Mount Pleasant and southern Westmoreland County’s early settlers were predominately English
and Scots-Irish, arriving in the late 1700s. Around the same time, German Mennonites, travelling
along the Glades Road from eastern Pennsylvania, began to settle and farm in the area.
Subsequently, they built businesses such as grist mills and distilleries. A large concentration of
German Mennonites was centered around Scottdale and West Overton just west of Mount
Pleasant.'

In 1821, the Somerset and Mount Pleasant Turnpike was organized along the same alignment as
the Glades Road, present-day Route 31, which includes Mount Pleasant’s Main Street. In
February 1828, Mount Pleasant was incorporated as a borough, the first in Westmoreland County.
The borough consisted of twenty-nine lots on approximately thirty-four acres. The original
borough, along with later annexations to the south of Main Street, comprises the present historic
district. "’

By the 1850s, the railroad offered an alternative to mountainous overland travel. Daniel Shupe,
owner of the Shupe Mill, lobbied the Pennsylvania Railroad to construct a branch from
Greensburg, the county seat, to Mount Pleasant noting the town’s trade stability. Subsequently the
Pennsylvania Railroad built a spur from Greensburg west of Mount Pleasant to Scottdale and
continued south to Connellsville. To supplement Mount Pleasant’s commercial growth, the
Baltimore & Ohio Railroad, which had taken over the Pittsburgh and Connellsville Railroad, built
tracks from Broad Ford north along the Youghiogheny River, to Mount Pleasant via Scottdale to
connect with the Pennsylvania Railroad. The B & O tracks were built to the east of the district,
near the developing industrial complexes at Shupe’s Run near the Shupe Mill."® As a result,
Mount Pleasant had links to both Connellsville and to larger markets in Greensburg,.

Geographically, Mount Pleasant sits atop a nine-foot vein of coal, part of the Pittsburgh coal seam,



